Electrical Systems Engineering Services II (ESES II)

Solicitation Number NNG11375927R

Final RFP Questions  - Part 1


COVER LETTER:

1.  The cover letter states the requirement of a proposal validity period of not less than 240 days yet Section L.15, Offer Volume, subparagraph a.1 states a required validity period of 270 days. Can the Government clarify the required validity period?

ANSWER:  The Government is requesting a proposal validity period 270 days. The information in the cover letter will be clarified through an amendment to the solicitation.
SECTION L:
2. Section L.14.: Are the cost exhibit spreadsheets subject to the format instructions provided in the following sections: 

· L.14(a)(3) “All pages of Volumes I, II, III, and IV shall be numbered and identified with the offeror’s name, RFP number, and date.”

· L.14(b)(2) “A page is defined as one side of a sheet, 8-1/2” x 11”, with at least one inch margins on all sides, using not smaller than 12 point type Times New Roman font.” 

Some of the MS Excel files issued with the RFP do not allow for 1” margins and some do not conform to the font restriction above (e.g., the GPM uses 10 point Arial font).
ANSWER: Exhibits 1A and 1B, the Government Pricing Model, are exempt from the page limitation.  Offerors may use these exhibits in the format in which they were provided.

3. Section L.15(c)(7)b: The following set of questions pertain to the new Section L.15(c)(7)b language “Provide copies of all salary surveys used to develop non-incumbent direct labor rates for cost realism and total compensation plan evaluation.” and also RFP Enclosure-A entitled Incumbent Labor Rates.  They also pertain to the newly titled Cost Exhibit-5 (Contract Level Source of Personnel).
a. Are we correct to assume that all the labor categories listed in Enclosure-A (entitled Incumbent Labor Rates) are incumbent labor categories, even those for which “Not Available” is specified?  The answer to this question, in addition to affecting what copies of salary surveys must be provided (see question-4b below), impacts how an offeror completes Cost Exhibit-5 (Contract Level Source of Personnel Chart) which should now be referenced in the Mission Suitability Volume to summarize an offeror’s staffing plan information (per new RFP Section L.16.3 language).
ANSWER:  All labor categories shown in Enclosure A should be considered incumbent labor categories regardless of whether or not a rate has been made available. 
b. If the answer to question 4a above is “Yes”, would we be correct in assuming that copies of salary surveys used to develop the direct labor rates for those labor categories, for which “not Available” was specified, do not need to be provided in an offeror’s proposal (as part of the Offer Volume)?  Or, should the new Section L.15(c)(7)b language additionally/also request copies of salary surveys used to develop incumbent direct labor rates for those labor categories for which “Not Available” is specified in Enclosure-A?
ANSWER:  Offerors must submit salary surveys for any labor category for which it is proposing a non-incumbent rate. This includes labor categories for which an offeror elects not to use incumbent labor and labor categories for which the Government has elected not to provide the current rate.
4. Section L.16.3: Given the new RFP Section L.16.3 Subfactor B language “The offeror shall provide a risk assessment to identify and address any programmatic risks relevant to the offeror’s accomplishment of the requirements in the contract.” and the corresponding new RFP Section M.3 language “The Government will evaluate the offeror’s risk assessment for adequacy and effectiveness of the approach to managing the risk, in terms of the probability of the risk, impact and severity, time-frame and rationale for risk acceptance or mitigation plan.”; will the government please considering raising the page limitation for the Mission Suitability Volume by five pages?

ANSWER:  The Government has considered this request but elects not to change the page limitations.

5. Section L.16.3: Given the new RFP Section L.16.3 Subfactor B language “Describe all software design and analysis tools that will be available for work to be performed  under the contract, including information such as the number of seats, licenses, etc. as appropriate, and a full explanation as to how costs for these tools are recovered, whether direct or indirect.” and the corresponding new RFP Section M.3 language “Software design and analysis tools proposed will be evaluated for applicability and adequacy in meeting the requirements in the SOW and the potential cost impact to the Government for their use.”; will the government please considering raising the page limitation for the Mission Suitability Volume by three or four pages?

ANSWER:  The Government has considered this request but elects not to change the page limitations.
6. Section L. 16.3: Subfactor B states (in the paragraph addressing software design and analysis tools) that offerors are required to provide a “full explanation as to how costs for these tools are recovered, whether direct or indirect “, yet in the cost instructions (RFP Section L.17.2(b), bullet 8) we are only requested to indicate any “recurring ODCs”, which presumably include items such as software maintenance. There doesn’t seem to be anywhere to record “one-time” ODCs, such as acquiring new software licenses that might be necessary.  Since these items may pose significant cost and are billable as ODCs, and presumably should be proposed, how should one-time planned ODCs be handled?

ANSWER:  The Government is requesting that offerors explain how costs for these tools are recovered as part of the Mission Suitability Volume.  This information will be evaluated in conjunction with the Mission Suitability Proposal.
7. Should the offeror consider that any software design and analysis tools will be provided as GFE on the ESES II contract?

ANSWER:  Some software design and analysis tools may be provided to the successful offeror to the extent that they are available; however, the Government cannot predict with any certainty what that availability may be at the time the tools may be needed as this is an IDIQ contract. A list of commonly used tools which may be made available to the successful offeror has been posted to the ESES II library.
8. Section L.16.3: Several questions were asked and answered regarding Phase In, but the RFP was not changed to address the issues raised. In particular, it is still confusing on how the Government intends to transition tasks to ESES II. Question #19 states that “Phase-in will begin upon issuance of Task Order 1 under the ESES II contract and ongoing tasks will be transitioned to the new contract as soon as possible taking into account the nature and timing of the work performed under each task order.“  This would imply a gradual transition of tasks. Since we are to plan and price the transition task (Task 1), it is important to know what constitutes an “ability to assume full contract responsibility” by the end.  There appear to be at least three possibilities for how the work will be transitioned:
a. Does the Government intend to transition all ESES work at once at the end of transition?

ANSWER: No.
b. Does the Government intend to transition all ESES work over the 30-day transition period, completing all transitions at the end of the 30-day transition period?
ANSWER: No.

c. Does the Government intend to transition slowly over an undetermined period, beginning at the end of the 30-day transition period?

ANSWER: The 30-day phase-in period will be accomplished through the issuance of the first task order under the contract. Upon completion of the 30-day phase-in period, the Government will begin issuing task orders under the new contract. The timing of the transition of ongoing tasks from the ESES Interim contract to ESES II will be in accordance with the needs of the projects and programs that those task orders support.  Offerors should not expect all tasks to transition on day 1 following the phase-in period; however, the Government intends to transition as many tasks as soon as appropriate following the 30-day phase-in period.
ATTACHMENTS, ENCLOSURES & EXHIBITS

9. Attachment A, page 6. There is a reference on page 6 of the ESES II SOW to GPR 8070.4. We cannot find this reference on the GDMS website. The only version we have located is GPR 8070.4A, which has an expiration date of March 22, 2010. Is GPR 8070A still valid, or is there a more current version?

ANSWER: The current version of GPR 8070.4B, expiration date 25 Aug 2014, can be found in GDMS.
10. Enclosure A. Will the Government add the Manufacturing Manager position and incumbent labor rate (if available) in Enclosure A – Incumbent Labor Rates?

ANSWER:  This position will be added to Enclosure A, however the incumbent rate will not be made available.
11. Exhibit 5: In order to fill out Cost Exhibit-5 accurately, would you please provide the number of incumbents per ESES-II labor category that are currently working ESES-I.  As many if not all offerors will we be proposing to hire at least a large number of incumbents (if not most/all of them), this information is necessary to provide an accurate reflection of Source of Personnel to populate this Cost Exhibit.  Or as an alternative, can an offeror use Exhibit-1A labor hours as a basis for determining the number of ESES-I incumbents, in order to complete Cost Exhibit-5?   
ANSWER:  Offerors may refer to the information in Exhibit 1A when completing Cost Exhibit 5.
12. Exhibit 5. Please clarify the definition of this labor category code: “I” = Incumbent. Is this to be used to designate a labor category as being consistent with the position description provided for the incumbent labor category?
ANSWER:  Exhibit 5 is used to delineate the planned source of personnel.  The code “I” is used to designate labor categories which the offeror plans to fill with incumbent labor.
13. We have noticed that many companies have recently begun using alternative work week structures as a means of increasing available productive hours without increasing cost.  Would Goddard be willing to entertain an expanded work week structure (e.g., 44 productive hours per week) even though it may have the effect of skewing the basis for price comparison among bidders?

ANSWER: A Contractor’s proposal should be based on its normal accounting and estimating systems/practices.  The Government will not dictate a Contractor’s productive work year, though an expanded work week may impact a Contractor’s ability to retain and recruit staff.
14. Exhibit 14, RTO #3. In the RTO 3 Task Description there is a requirement:

Support of Electronics Box Environmental Test

· Thermal/Vacuum

· Vibration

· EMI/EMC

· Instrument Calibration and Alignment

It is not clear what is meant by the requirement to support “Instrument Calibration and Alignment” relative to environmental test of the electronic box. Does this mean environmental testing of the electronic box during calibration and alignment of the GHI Instrument? If not, what does it mean?

ANSWER:  Exhibit 14, RTO #3 will be revised to raise “Instrument Calibration and Alignment” to a higher level rather than showing it as a sub-bullet under “Box Environmental Test”.

